EXHIBIT E

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. BY-LAWS AND REGULATIONS

This Instrument prepared by:

Daniel M. Bennie, Esq.
BARRON, PECK & BENNIE
Barron, Peck, Bennie & Schlemmer Co., LPA
3074 Madison Rd.
Cincinnati, OH 45209
513/721-1350

BY-LAWS AND REGULATIONS

OF

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Association is **SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.**, (the "Association"). The principal office of the Association shall be located at 10123 Alliance Rd., Suite 100, Cincinnati, Ohio 45242, but meetings of Members and Trustees may be held at such places within Montgomery County, State of Ohio, or as may be designated by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Section 1. "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the "Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Reservation of Easements" applicable to the Property known as "The Trails of Saddle Creek," recorded in the Office of the Montgomery County Recorder, as the same may be amended from time to time.

Section 2. As used in these By-Laws, the terms "Articles" and "Articles of Incorporation," "Association", "Board" and "Board of Trustees", "By-Laws", "Common Areas" and "Community Facilities", "Declarant", "Development Period", "Living Unit", "Lot", "Member", "Owner", "Property", Saddle Creek Property" and "Trustee" or "Trustees" shall have the same meaning as each is defined to have in the Declaration.

ARTICLE III

MEETING OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held within eighteen (18) months from the date of incorporation of the Association, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the first Monday of the same month of each year thereafter. If the day for the annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meeting of the Members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or

person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen (15) days before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

- Section 4. Quorum. A quorum of those present at a meeting of Members entitled to cast the votes of each class of membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote thereat shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.
- Section 5. Adjourned Meetings. If, at any regular or special meeting of the Members of the Association, there be less than a quorum present, a majority of those Members present and entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called, at which time the quorum requirement shall be fifteen (15%) percent of the votes of each class of membership of the Association and any business which might lawfully have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- Section 6. Proxies. At all meetings of Members, each Member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his Lot.
- Section 7. Voting. The vote of the majority of those present, either in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which a different vote is required by provision of the laws of Ohio, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association or these By-Laws.
- Section 8. Suspension of Voting Privileges. No Member shall be eligible to vote or to be elected to the Board of Trustees who is shown on the books of the Association to be more than sixty (60) days delinquent in the payment of any assessment due the Association.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF TRUSTEES - SELECTION - TERM OF OFFICE

Section 1. Board of Trustees. The initial Board shall consist of three (3) Trustees appointed by the Class B Member who shall serve until their respective successors are appointed and qualified. Declarant appointed Trustees need not be Members of the Association. Except as otherwise hereafter provided and except for the period during which the Declarant shall control the Board, Trustees shall be elected for three (3) year terms of office and shall serve until their respective successors are elected and qualified. Any vacancy which occurs in the initial or any subsequent Board, by reason of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise, may be filled at any meeting of the Board by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Trustees representing the same class of Members who elected or appointed the Trustee whose position has become vacant.

Any Trustee elected to fill a vacancy shall serve as such until the expiration of the term of the Trustee whose position he or she was elected to fill.

On or before the fifth annual meeting, the Board of Trustees shall expand from three (3) to five (5). At such meeting, the Class B Member shall appoint three (3) Trustees for a three (3) year term. Thereafter, at each tri-annual meeting the Class B Member, until such time as the Declarant shall transfer control of the Board to the Class A Members, shall appoint three (3) Trustees for a three (3) year term.

On or before the fifth annual meeting, the Class B Member shall appoint two (2) Trustees from the Class A Members. One of the Trustees shall be appointed for a two (2) year term, one of the Trustees shall be appointed for a one (1) year term. At the expiration of the terms of such Trustees and until such time as the Declarant shall transfer control of the Board to the Class A Members, the Class B Member shall, at the annual meeting, appoint successor Trustees for a two (2) year term. The Declarant shall transfer control of the Board to the Class A Members after the later of the following events: (i) twenty (20) years following conveyance of the first Lot of the Saddle Creek Property by the Declarant; or (ii) abandonment of the Saddle Creek Property by Declarant. At this meeting, all Declarant appointed Trustees shall be deemed removed from office and the Class A Members, including the Declarant if it is then an Owner, shall elect a Trustee to fill each vacancy on the Board. The terms of said elected Trustees shall be from one to three years, as determined by the Board, so that in any one year thereafter, the terms of no more than three (3) nor less than two (2) Trustees shall expire. At all times after this meeting, the Board shall consist of five (5) Trustees who shall be Owners or their employees or agents. Additionally, after this meeting, all Trustees, and their successors, shall be elected by Class A Members and shall be elected for a three (3) year term.

Notwithstanding anything above to the contrary, the Class B Member may, by written notice to the Board, at or before any annual meeting, relinquish to the Class A Members, the Class B Members right to elect one or more Trustees at such annual meeting pursuant to this section.

Section 2. Election. Following the termination of Class B Membership, election to the Board of Trustees shall be by written ballot. At such election the Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

Section 3. Removal. Any Trustee may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members of the Association.

Section 4. Compensation. No Trustee shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association. However, any Trustee may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

Section 5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The Trustees shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the Trustees. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Trustees.

ARTICLE V

NOMINATION OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Trustees shall be made by a Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a Member of the Board of Trustees, and two or more Members of the Association appointed by the Chairman. The Nominating Chairman shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees at least sixty (60) days prior to each annual meeting of the Members, to serve from the time of appointment until the close of the next annual meeting, and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Trustees as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled by election.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS OF TRUSTEES

- Section 1. Regular Meetings. The Board of Trustees shall meet annually within ten (10) days after the annual meeting of Members and in addition to the annual meeting shall meet at regular meetings established as to time and place by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.
- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held when called by the President of the Association, or by any three (3) Trustees, after not less than three (3) days notice to each Trustee.
- Section 3. Waiver of Notice. Any requirement of notice to a Trustee provided under this Article VI may be waived by the Trustee entitled thereto by written waiver of such notice signed by the Trustee and filed with the Secretary of the Association.
- Section 4. Quorum. A majority of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Trustees present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

ARTICLE VII

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Powers. The Board of Trustees shall have power to:

- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Areas and Community Facilities and the personal conduct of the Members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of the Common Areas and Community Facilities of a Member during any period in which such Member shall be in default in the payment of any Assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- (d) declare the office of a member of the Board of Trustees to be vacant in the event such Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Trustees; and
- (e) employ a manager, an independent contractor, or such employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.

Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Trustees to:

- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts, corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Members at the annual meeting of the Members, or at any special meeting when such statement is required in writing by the Class B Member and by thirty (30%) percent of the Class A Members;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
 - (c) as more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
- (1) fix the amount of the Annual Assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each Annual Assessment period;
- (2) send written notice of each Assessment to every Owner subject thereto fifteen (15) days in advance of each assessment period; and
- (3) foreclose the lien against any property for which Assessments are not paid within sixty (60) days after due date or to bring an action at law against the Owner personally

obligated to pay the same, when, in the sole determination of the Board, foreclosure or an action at law is necessary to collect such Assessments and otherwise protect the interest of the Association;

- (d) issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any Assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge not to exceed Twenty-Five (\$25.00) dollars may be made by the Board for issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an Assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability, hazard and other appropriate insurance on property owned by the Association;
- (f) cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate;
 - (g) cause the Common Areas and Community Facilities to be maintained:
 - (h) otherwise perform duties imposed by the Declaration.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

- <u>Section 1.</u> <u>Enumeration of Officers</u>. The officers of this Association shall be a President and Vice-President, who shall at all times be Members of the Board of Trustees, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time create by resolution.
- <u>Section 2.</u> <u>Election of Officers</u>. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Trustees following each annual meeting of the Members.
- Section 3. Term. The officers of the Association shall be elected by the Board and each shall hold office for three (3) years unless such officer shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or be otherwise disqualified to serve.
- Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.
- Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment of the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

Section 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

Section 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

President

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Trustees and shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out.

Vice-President

The Vice-President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board.

Secretary

The Secretary shall: 1) record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the Members; 2) serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the Members; 3) keep appropriate current records showing the Members of the Association together with their addresses; and 4) shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.

Treasurer

The Treasurer shall: 1) receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Trustees; 2) keep proper books of account; 3) cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and 4) shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the Members.

ARTICLE IX

COMMITTEES

The Board of Trustees shall appoint a Finance and Budget Committee consisting of not more than six (6) Members of the Association.

The Board of Trustees shall appoint a Design Review Committee, as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these By-Laws. In addition, the Board of Trustees shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

ARTICLE X

INDEMNIFICATION

In addition to any other right or remedy to which the persons hereafter described may be entitled, under the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, Declaration, any other agreement, or by vote of the Members or otherwise, the Association shall, and does, indemnify any Trustee or officer of the Association or former Trustee or officer of the Association, who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative by reason of the fact that he is or was a Trustee or officer of the Association, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful

ARTICLE XI

MISCELLANEOUS

- <u>Section 1.</u> <u>Books and Records</u>. The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any Member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any Member at the principal office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.
- Section 2. Corporate Seal. The Board of Trustees may, if it desires, provide a suitable corporate seal containing the name of the Association and other appropriate statements, as the Board of Trustees shall determine.
- Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall begin on the first day of January of every year, except that the first fiscal year of the Association shall begin at the date of incorporation. The commencement date of the fiscal year herein established shall be subject to change by the Board of Trustees should corporate practice subsequently dictate.
- Section 4. Execution of Association Documents. With the prior authorization of the Board of Trustees, all notes, contracts and other documents shall be executed on behalf of the Association by either the President or the Vice-President, and all checks and other drafts shall be executed on behalf of the Association by such officers, agents or other persons as are from time to time designated by the Board of Trustees.

Section 5. Conflict. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

Section 6. Amendments. These By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by affirmative vote of the Class B Member, and fifty-one percent (51%) of the total number of votes held by Class A Members.

We, the undersigned Trustees of Saddle Creek Community Association, Inc., an Ohio non-profit corporation, No. 1641218 recorded in the records of incorporation and miscellaneous filings in the Office of the Secretary of State of Ohio, do hereby approve the adoption of the foregoing By-Laws and Regulations, for the governance of this Association.

ames E. Kiefer

ar E. Menchhofe

James P. Sullivan

EXHIBIT F

to

The Trails of Saddle Creek

Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions And Reservation of Easements

Common Areas and Community Facilities for The Trails of Saddle Creek Sections 1 through 4

- 1. The real property identified as Common Area lots on the Subdivision Plats for The Trails of Saddle Creek Sections 1 through 4, and described as follows:
 - a. Lots 25, 26, 27, and 116 of The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section One
 - b. Lots 52, 53, and 54 of The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Two
 - c. Lot 80 of The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Three
 - d. Lots 112, 113, 114, and 115 of The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Four
- 2. Landscaped and grassed areas and plants and entry features within or along public right of ways, and within Common Area lots including but not limited to stone entry walls and columns, community entry signage, irrigation, and lighting.
- 3. Three rail white vinyl fencing, whether located within the Development or on real property.
- Street name signs and traffic control signs.
- 5. Neighborhood identification signs including landscaped plantings areas.
- 6. Pedestrian plaza areas, consisting of brick pavers, stone columns, fencing, and landscape plantings.
- 7. Hike-Bike Trail located within or along the public roadway Saddle Creek Trail.
- 8. Swimming Pool(s), Pavilion Building, and Community recreation amenities located on Lot number 52 in The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Two.
- 9. All Storm Water Facilities identified for maintenance in <u>Exhibit G, Part 1</u>, pursuant to the Maintenance Schedule described in <u>Exhibit G, Part 2</u>.

EXHIBIT G

STORM WATER FACILITIES AND MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE

For

The Trails of Saddle Creek

PART 1 – STORMWATER FACILITIES

The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section One (1)
The following items are to be maintained by Saddle Creek Community Association, Inc.

<u>Item</u>	<u>Size</u>	Length	Plan Identification	Plan Location
Storm Sewer	36" 12" 36" 12" 15" 12" 27" 24"	16 LF 40 LF 25 LF 75 LF 32 LF 54 LF 25 LF 68 LF 152 LF	Between MH119-PE120 Between CB113-PE113A Between HW111A-RW Between CB57-CB58 Between CB58-HW58C Between CB60-HW60A Between RW-CB70 (Inlet) Between MH29-HW29D Between MH71-RW(SCT)	Lot 25 (Open) Detention Detention 116 Detention 116 Detention 116 Detention 116 Detention 116 Future Open
Storm Sewer Storm Inlets Storm Inlets Storm Inlets Storm Inlets Storm Manholes Storm Manholes	Std. M	wall wall n Basin (Det.) Ianhole Ianhole	Between MH71-RW(BBD) HW117A HW116 HW111A HWCB70 MH119 MH71	Future Open Lot 26 (Open) Lot 26 (Open) Detention Detention 116 Lot 25 (Open) Future Open
Storm Sewer Outlet Storm Sewer Outlet Storm Sewer Outlet Storm Sewer Outlet Storm Sewer Outlet Detention Basin Retention Basin	t Headwall t Headwall t Headwall		HW58C HW60A HW29D PE120 PE107C Detention Basin Retention Basin	Det. Lot 116 Det. Lot 116 Detention 116 Lot 25 (Open) Adj. Lot 14 Adj.Lot 16 Lot 116

EXHIBIT G, PART 1 (Continued)

The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Two (2)
The following items are to be maintained by Saddle Creek Community Association, Inc.

<u>Item</u>	Size	Length	Plan Identification	Plan Location
Storm Sewer	12"	200 LF	Between CB98A-CB98B	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer	12"	75 LF	Between CB98B-MH	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer	27"	300 LF	Between MH-MH	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer	27"	300 LF	Between MH-MH	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer	27"	105 LF	Between MH-HW	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer	24"	45 LF	Between MH-CB97	Lot 41
Storm Sewer	27"	115 LF	Between MH9-HW10	Lot 31
Storm Sewer	12"	60 LF	Between CB29B-CB29A	Lot 52
Storm Sewer	12"	156 LF	Between MH7-CB7E	Lot 52
Storm Sewer	12"	206 LF	Between CB58A-CB58B	Lot 53 Open
Storm Sewer	12"	22 LF	Between CB58B-CB58 (Sect 1)	Lot 54 P.D.
Storm Sewer	15"	22 LF	Between CB52-CB53	Priv. Dr.
Storm Sewer	15"	35 LF	Between CB53-HW53A	Lot 116
Storm Inlets	Catch	Basin	CB98A	Clyo Road
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB98B	Clyo Road
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB98A	Clyo Road
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB58A	Lot 53 Open
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB29A	Lot 52
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB27A	Lot 52
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin		CB27B	Lot 52
Storm Inlets	Catch	Basin	CB7E	Lot 52
Storm Manholes	Std. M	lanhole	МН	Clyo Road
Storm Manholes	Std. Manhole		MH	Clyo Road
Storm Manholes	Std. Manhole		MH	Clyo Road
Storm Manholes	Std. Manhole		MH9	Lot 31
Storm Manholes	Std. Manhole		MH7	Lot 52
Storm Sewer Outlet	Headw	vall	HW	Clyo Road
Storm Sewer Outlet	Headw	vall	HW10	Lot 116 Det.

EXHIBIT G, PART 1 (Continued)

The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Three (3)

The following items are to be maintained by Saddle Creek Community Association, Inc.

<u>Item</u>	Size Length	Plan Identification	Plan Location
Storm Sewer	36" 225 LF	Between CB116-CB214	Future Lot
Storm Sewer	15" 174 LF	Between CB24A-PlugMH24	Lot 81
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin	CB116	Open
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin	CB26A	Lot 80 Open
Storm Inlets	Catch Basin	CB24A	Lot 81 Sect. 4

The Trails of Saddle Creek, Section Four (4)
The following items are to be maintained by Saddle Creek Community Association, Inc.

<u>Item</u>	Size Length	Plan Identification	Plan Location
Storm Sewer Storm Inlets	12" 72 LF	Between CB5C-CB5D	Lot 115
	Catch Basin	CB5C	Lot 115

EXHIBIT G, PART 2 - MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE

Applicable to all Sections of **The Trails of Saddle Creek**

Item	Inspection Period	Procedure
Storm Sewer / Manhole	Yearly	A. Visually inspect for blockage / debris.1. Clear all blockage and remove debrisB. Secure all manhole covers.
Storm Sewers	Yearly	 A. Visually inspect for blockages and siltation 1. Clear all blockages. 2. Flush siltation where depth of siltation build-up exceeds 25% of pipe diameter.

EXHIBIT G, PART 2 - Maintenance Schedule (Continued)

Item	Inspection Period	Procedure
Storm Sewer Inlets	Yearly	 A. Visually inspect for blockage, debris, and siltation. 1. Clear all blockages and remove debris. 2. Check that all street grates are secure
Storm Sewer Outlets	Yearly	 A. Visually inspect for blockage / debris 1. Clear all blockage and remove debris. 2. In case where paved aprons, rip-rap channels or other flow retarding facilities extend beyond storm sewer outlet, such facilities should be cleaned of blockages and siltation.
Detention Basin / Retention Basin	Yearly	 A. Check for loose debris and siltation in basin Remove all debris. Remove siltation where the buildup of silt is such to impede the flow of water along the paved ditch or into the overflow structure, or has covered the grassed bottom of the facility. Re-seed basin upon completion of silt removal. Basin should be mowed at the minimum annually. Visually inspect perimeter of detention basin for erosion of earthen barrier.
		Restore eroded area by regarding and reseeding.
Overflow Structure / Detention Basin Release Structure	Yearly	 A. Visually inspect for blockage by debris and siltation. 1. Remove debris and siltation and assure clearance of all inlet ports. 2. Secure lids / or grating.

EXHIBIT G, PART 2 - Maintenance Schedule (Continued)

Item	Inspection Period	Procedure
Paved Ditch Channel	Yearly	A. Visually inspect for blockage by debris and silt.
		 Clear and remove debris and silt from paved ditch.
Drainage Channels	Yearly	 A. Visually inspect along the length of the drainage channel for any obstruction or blockage that would restrict the overland flow of water. 1. Clear channel of any obstruction /blockage. 2. Where the channel is a grassed swale, a minimum yearly mowing should be provided.
		 B. All channels should be checked for change of course and erosion. 1. Reestablish channel and re-sod or reseed channel. 3. The County Engineer's Office should be consulted for advise regarding any change of course of any channel with a year around flow of water.